
*Executive Session: Subjects that may be considered in executive session are: 1)  Matters, immediate knowledge of which would clearly have 
an adverse effect upon the finances of the public entity; 2)  Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person,
provided that the person may request a public discussion; 3)  Matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 4)  Matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosure; 5)  Direction to an 
attorney or labor negotiator regarding the handling of specific legal matters or labor negotiations.

  HOSPITAL SERVICES BOARD AGENDA 
 December 19, 2023 SPECIAL MEETING 
 12:00PM HYBRID IN-PERSON & ZOOM 

CCMC, WE BELIEVE THAT HEALTHY PEOPLE CREATE A HEALTHY COMMUNITY. 

OPENING: Call to Order 
Roll Call - Kelsey Hayden, Liz Senear, Chris Iannazzone, and Ann Linville. 
Establishment of a Quorum 
A. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS

(Speaker must give name and agenda item)
 1. Audience Comments

2. Guest Speaker
B. BOARD DEVELOPMENT ~ none
C. CONFLICT OF INTEREST
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. October 26, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
2. November 27, 2023 Special Board Meeting Minutes

F. REPORTS OF OFFICERS OR ADVISORS
1. Board Chair Report
2. CEO Report
3. Director of Finance Report

G. DISCUSSION ITEMS
H. ACTION ITEMS

1. Approval of 2023 DZA Audit Engagement letter
2. Delineation of Privileges for Murray Buttner, MD
3. Delineation of Privileges for Mary Horner, MD
4. CCMC 2024 Budget Approval
5. CCMC Salary Philosophy Approval

I. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (limited to 3 minutes per speaker) Members of the public are given the
opportunity to comment on matters which are within the subject matter authority of the Board and are appropriate for discussion in an open session.

J. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS
K. EXECUTIVE SESSION

1. CCMC Leadership and Staff Compensation Philosophy, a subject which is a matter the immediate
knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the entity.

L. ADJOURNMENT

This Hospital Services Board meeting will be held via ZOOM: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4675701050?pwd=TXEvSFVHOHhIL1JvOGNua1RUUjdQUT09 
Meeting ID: 467 570 1050; Passcode: 379187 

To call in: 1-253-215-8782  
Meeting ID: 467 570 1050; Passcode: 379187 
For a full packet, go to www.cityofcordova.net/government/boards-commissions/health-services-board 

Board  
Kelsey Hayden       exp. 3/26 
Liz Senear         exp. 3/24 
Ann Linville        exp. 3/25 
Chris Iannazzone  exp. 3/26 
Vacant         exp. 3/24 

CEO  
Hannah Sanders, M.D. 

 

Pgs 1-4
Pgs 5-6

Pgs 7-19
Pgs 20-29
Pgs 30-35
Pgs 36-37
Pgs 38-40

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4675701050?pwd=TXEvSFVHOHhIL1JvOGNua1RUUjdQUT09


Minutes 
CCMC Authority – Board of Directors 

In-Person Meeting 
 October 26, 2023 at 12:00pm 

Regular Meeting  

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL – 

Kelsey Hayden called the Board Meeting to order at 12:00pm.   
Board members present:  Kelsey Hayden, Liz Senear, Ann Linville, and Chris Iannazzone. 
Linnea Ronnegard was absent 
Quorum was established. 4 members present.  

CCMC staff present:  Dr. Hannah Sanders, CEO; Tamara Russin, Director of Ancillary Services; 
Alexus Allen, CAH Director of Nursing; Denna Stavig, Director of Finance; Noelle Camarena, 
Director of Operations and Faith Wheeler-Jeppson.  

A. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS
1. Audience Comments ~ None
2. Guest Speaker ~ None

B. BOARD DEVELOPMENT ~ None
C. CONFLICT OF INTEREST ~ None

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
M/Senear S/Linville “I move to approve the Agenda.”
Ronnegard – absent, Senear- yea, Linville – yea, Hayden – yea, and Iannazzone -
yea.
4 yeas, 0 nay, 1 absent; Motion passed 4-0.

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
M/Iannazzone S/Linville “I move to approve the August 31, 2023 Meeting Minutes.”
Senear- yea, Ronnegard – absent, Hayden – yea, Iannazzone – yea, and Linville –
yea.
4 yeas, 0 nay, 1 absent; Motion passed 4-0.

F. REPORTS OF OFFICERS and ADVISORS
1. Board Chair report – I’ve been checking in with Dr. Sanders. I don’t have too much to

report, Dr. Sanders did a great overview at City Council last night.

2. CEO Report – Dr. Sanders reported that her written report is in the packet. One of the
things that I will point out is that $76,000 was written off in Charity Care for the canneries
for August, this does not include September. Or our claims for June and July was not
captured in that data. I am currently working on a letter to each of the canneries to
identify their specific amount that we wrote off just from that month and ask that they
require their employees to obtain insurance when they come to Cordova. They do this in
Dutch Harbor, so it is not a unique idea, we’re hoping that we can get them to participate.
The other thing that has been a major issue for us is that our CT Scanner has been down

1



more than it’s been up for the last couple of months. That’s not going to change in the 
next few months, the parts for our particular CT Scanner are becoming very hard to find 
and they’re finding it very hard to keep our machine functional.   This was a refurbished 
machine when we bought it in 2015. I don’t feel like we had the visibility when we got this 
machine to see that we were going to need to replace it in a few years. We are currently 
working on a replacement plan. Some of the smaller communities will get a 5-year lease 
on a machine and when that lease is up, they will start a new lease with a new machine 
so the lease rates get baked into your cost report each year and becomes part of your 
operating cost. I think we have options for the replacement of our CT Scanner.   

 
3. Director of Finance Report – Denna Stavig reported that the August Financials are in 

the packet. Septembers will be in your next month’s packet. In August every was pretty 
good, our Benefits were a lot less, we had a stop-loss payment from PBS for the month 
and it was roughly $70,000 so that lowered our Taxes and Benefits this time. Other than 
that, our Cash and our Payables are both doing fine.  
 

4. Medical Director Quarterly Report – Dr. Bejes’ written report is in the packet. Dr. 
Sanders is available to answer any questions the Board might have.  
 

5. Quality Quarterly Report – Noelle Camarena stated that the facility continues to 
work on a lot of Quality efforts. One of the avenues in which we are trying to make sure 
that there is a high quality of care is through staff trainings. We’ve had a number of 
successful staff training; we’ve had trainings with the Police Department and Emergency 
Preparedness where they put on Active Shooter trainings. There was a Trauma training 
that was between our EMS community and our Emergency Department regarding the 
transfer of care, we had our annual education day for Nursing which encompassed two 
days and twenty different topics to help be survey ready.  And a big nod to Daniella Rossi, 
out LTC DON. We have been recognized with two awards for Quality, one through the 
American Healthcare Association, and the other from the Alaska Healthcare and Hospital 
Association. We are currently working on a grant that is all staff for training and education 
within the individuals field as long as it benefits the organization as well as the staff 
member. 
 

6. Nursing Department Quarterly Report – Alexus Allen stated that her report was in 
the packet. Just a few things that have changed since I wrote the report, Daniella is still 
doing to LTC DON work remote, in house we have Generose doing in-house for the times 
that she is working, myself and Noelle are no longer being involved in the LTC side when 
it comes to that. Staffing we’re doing pretty well, the CNA’s we actually have quite a few 
more since the last Quarterly Board report due to the recent CNA Class that they passed.  
For the Education Plan you may have heard about the Unit Clerk Orientation PowerPoint, 
its now referred to as the Reference PowerPoint it is a resource for the Unit Clerks. It is 
continuously updated with input from different departments. And then just to touch on the 
grant that Noelle was talking about, that actually helped me get approved to teach BLS, 
ACLS and PALS so we have an instructor on site.  
 

7. Ancillary Services Quarterly Report – Tamara Russin stated that her report was in 
the packet. Items to note are that we just got the Moderna vaccine in last week, and the 
Clinic is actively giving Covid vaccines and Flu vaccines. If you haven’t gotten your Flu 
vaccine yet and you want one you should get it soon. Lab, Radiology and Rehab are all 
doing well. PT staff utilized the training and education grant.  
 2



8. Sound Alternatives Quarterly Report – Barbara Jewell is not available, but her
written report is in the packet. Dr. Sanders reported that we do have a new traveler
Clinician who started seeing patients. Things seem to be stable and doing well in the
department.  Dr. Sanders is available to answer any questions about anything in Barb’s
report or in the Department.

G. DISCUSSION ITEMS ~ None

H. ACTION ITEMS
1. Update the CCMC Authorized Check Signers
M/Senear S/Linville “I move to approve the Resolution of the CCMC Authority Board of
Directors designating the representatives authorized for signing checks, non-check payroll tax
payment, and cash transfers for Cordova Community Medical Center.”
Senear- yea, Hayden – yea, Ronnegard – absent, Iannazzone – yea, and Linville –
yea.
4 yeas, 0 nay, 1 absent; Motion passed 4-0.

2. Emergency Preparedness Portable Shelter Purchase
M/Linville S/Iannazzone “I move that the CCMC Authority Board of Directors
approve the purchase of an Emergency Preparedness Portable Shelter at a cost no
greater than $47,000 as presented.”
Iannazzone – yea, Hayden – yea, Linville – yea, Ronnegard – absent, and Senear- 
yea.
4 yeas, 0 nay, 1 absent; Motion passed 4-0.

3. Approval to Close a CCMC Account
M/Linville S/Senear “I move that the CCMC Authority Board of Directors approve the
request for CCMC staff to close the existing savings account and open a repurchase account
with those funds.”
Senear- yea, Ronnegard – absent, Iannazzone – yea, Linville – yea, and Hayden –
yea.
4 yeas, 0 nay, 1 absent; Motion passed 4-0.

4. Generator Compliance Approval
M/Iannazzone S/Senear “I move that the CCMC Authority Board of Directors approve the
request for CCMC staff to issue an RFP for the design, and construction to modify the CCMC
current electrical generator system to bring it into compliance with applicable requirements
within NFPA 70, NFPA 70E, NFPA 72, NFPA 99, NFPA 101, the IBC, and the IMC.”
Iannazzone – yea, Senear- yea, Ronnegard – absent, Linville – yea, and Hayden –
yea.
4 yeas, 0 nay, 1 absent; Motion passed 4-0.

I. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION ~ None

J. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS
Iannazzone ~ A lot of positive things, good to see. I definitely like these noon meetings.
Thank you, guys!
Hayden ~ I’ve been talking with folks in the community and getting good feedback. People
are excited about all of the positive things that are happening.
Senear ~ Nice to see everything going so smoothly.
Linville ~ Hopefully this training and education grant will go assist with retention. Great job!

3



Administration and The Board of Directors discussed and agreed to change the time of the 
monthly Board meetings to 12:00pm going forward.  

K. EXECUTIVE SESSION ~ None

L. ADJOURNMENT
M/Senear S/Linville “I move to adjourn”
Kelsey Hayden declared the meeting adjourned at 12:50.

Prepared by:   Faith Wheeler-Jeppson 

4



Minutes 

CCMC Authority – Board of Directors 

November 27, 2023 at 12:00pm 

Special Meeting via ZOOM 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL – 

Kelsey Hayden called the Board Meeting to order at 12:00pm.   

Board members present:  Kelsey Hayden, Liz Senear, and Ann Linville. 

Chris Iannazzone was absent 

Quorum was established. 3 members present.  

CCMC staff present:  Dr. Hannah Sanders, CEO; Tamara Russin, Director of Ancillary Services; 

Denna Stavig, Director of Finance; and Faith Wheeler-Jeppson.  

A. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS
1. Audience Comments ~ None
2. Guest Speaker ~ None

B. BOARD DEVELOPMENT ~ None

C. CONFLICT OF INTEREST ~ None

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

M/Senear S/Linville “I move to approve the Agenda.”

Senear- yea, Linville – yea, Hayden – yea, and Iannazzone - absent.
3 yeas, 0 nay, 1 absent; Motion passed 3-0.

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES ~ None

F. REPORTS OF OFFICERS and ADVISORS

1. Board Chair report – I don’t really have much to report, I have been doing some

groundwork to see if we could fill our vacant seat. I didn’t come up with too much, Liz has

some great options. Hopefully we can find someone who wants to continue long term.

2. CEO Report – Dr. Sanders reported that her written report is in the packet. I do have
to make one clarification; CCMC is pursuing the CT Scanner replacement and I previously
stated that CCMC is not doing lung screenings but I was misinformed. CCMC does
currently screening exams. And by replacing the CT Scanner we will be continuing to
perform them. Other than that, I don’t have any other updates that are pertinent today. I
am happy to answer any questions that you might have.

3. Director of Finance Report – Denna Stavig reported that the September Financials
are in the packet. We got some Swing Bed patients, so Swing was up for the month.
Overall, we ended with a pretty good month. Nothing out of the ordinary happened, Cash
is still fine.  If you have any questions on that let me know. With our Bad Debt policy that
we approved, I need to disclose the amount to you each month so September’s Bad Debt
that we wrote off was $88,752. We will have more in November, but then hopefully we

5



won’t have anymore large amounts after that. I do have the October Financials; I can 
share my screen with you as we review them. October was another good month for 
Swing, and we did pretty good overall for the month. We finalized the final review of our 
2021 Medicare Cost Report. We received our demand letter for it, so that is reflected in 
our contractuals this month which is why they look a little bit larger.  This month again 
Cash is fine. October Bad Debt written off was $10,660. 

 

G. DISCUSSION ITEMS ~ None 
 

H. ACTION ITEMS  
1. Update the CCMC Authorized Check Signers 
M/Senear S/Linville “I move to approve the Resolution of the CCMC Authority Board of 
Directors designating the representatives authorized for signing checks, non-check payroll tax 
payment, and cash transfers for Cordova Community Medical Center as presented.” 
Senear - yea, Hayden – yea, Iannazzone – absent, and Linville – yea. 
3 yeas, 0 nay, 1 absent; Motion passed 3-0. 
 
2. CT Scanner Lease Approval 

M/Linville S/Senear “I move that the CCMC Authority Board of Directors approve the 
request to enter into a lease for a new CT Scanner as presented.” 
 
M/Senear S/Linville “I move to go into Executive Session regarding the CT Scanner Lease, 
a subject which is a matter the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse 
effect upon the finances of the entity.”  
 
At 12:25pm M/Senear S/Linville “Move to back into regular session”. 
 
Voice Vote on the Main Motion  
Iannazzone – absent, Hayden – yea, Linville – yea, and Senear- yea. 
3 yeas, 0 nay, 1 absent; Motion passed 3-0. 

 
I. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION ~ None 
  
J. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS  

Hayden ~ Excited about the CT Scanner Project. Good work everybody. 
Senear ~ It’s great that you’re still showing a profit this year. Good job everybody 
Linville ~ I agree, it’s a great thing to see (a profit). Good luck with the CT Project. 
 
 

K. EXECUTIVE SESSION ~ None 

 

L. ADJOURNMENT  

M/Senear S/Linville “I move to adjourn” 

Kelsey Hayden declared the meeting adjourned at 12:30. 

 

 

Prepared by:   Faith Wheeler-Jeppson 

6



 MEMORANDUM 

To: Hospital Services Board

Subject: Dingus, Zarecor & Associates PLLC 

Date:  12/08/2023 

Suggested Motion: “I move that the Hospital Services Board authorizes Hannah 
Sanders, CEO to enter into an agreement with Dingus, Zarecor & Associates PLLC 
for the purpose of conducting the 2023 Financial Audit.” 

7



October 27, 2023 

Health Services Board 
   and Dr. Hannah Sanders, CEO 
Cordova Community Medical Center 
602 Chase Ave. 
Cordova, Alaska 99574 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Cordova Community 
Medical Center (the Hospital) for the year ending December 31, 2023. 

Audit Scope and Objectives 

We will audit the financial statements of the Hospital, which comprise the statement of net position as of 
December 31, 2023, the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and cash 
flows for the year then ending, and the disclosures. 

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) provide for certain 
required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to 
supplement the Hospital’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited 
procedures to the Hospital’s RSI in accordance with GAAS. These limited procedures will consist of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by 
generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not 
be audited: 

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the 
Hospital’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with GAAS, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole, in a report combined with our auditors’ report on the financial statements: 

 Schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

8



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Page 2 

 Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

 Schedule of the Hospital’s Contributions – Defined Benefit Pension Plan

 Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability

 Schedule of the Hospital’s Contributions – OPEB Plan

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and report on the fairness of the 
supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefor is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, 
they would influence the judgement of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements. The 
objective also includes reporting on — 

 Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the
financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

 Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of
opinion) on compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal
awards that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and Single Audit 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Audit 
Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of the Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of your 
accounting records, a determination of major programs in accordance with Uniform Guidance, and other 
procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion. As part of an audit in 
accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves a fair presentation. We will plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, 
(3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable
to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity. Because the
determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide
reasonable assurance of detecting abuse.

9



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Page 3 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, 
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk 
that some material misstatements or noncompliance may not be detected by us, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements 
or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements or on major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management 
of any material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our 
attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. We will include such 
matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period 
covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 

With respect to cost reports that may be filed with a third party (such as federal and state regulatory 
agencies), the auditors have not been engaged to test in any way, or render any form of assurance on, the 
propriety or allowability of the specific costs to be claimed on, or charges to be in reported in, a cost 
report. Management is responsible for the accuracy and propriety of all cost reports filed with Medicare, 
Medicaid, or other third parties. 

The auditors’ procedures do not include testing compliance with laws and regulations in any jurisdiction 
related to Medicare and Medicaid antifraud and abuse. It is the responsibility of management of the entity, 
with the oversight of those charged with governance, to ensure that the entity’s operations are conducted 
in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations, including compliance with the provisions of 
laws and regulations that determine the reported amounts and disclosures on the entity’s financial 
statements. Therefore, management’s responsibilities for compliance with laws and regulations applicable 
to its operations, including, but are not limited to, those related to Medicare and Medicaid antifraud and 
abuse statutes.  

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable amount of time.  

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the 
accounts, and may include direct confirmation of certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with 
selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We may request written 
representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement. 

We may, from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in 
serving your account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers but 
remain committed to maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we 
maintain internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal 
information. In addition, we will secure confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain 
the confidentiality of your information and we will take reasonable precautions to determine that they 
have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information 
to others. In the event that we are unable to secure and appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be 
asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party 
service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party 
service providers. 

10



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Page 4 

Audit Procedures — Internal Control 

We will obtain an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control relevant to 
the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and 
obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal 
control.  

Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant 
to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing 
and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct 
and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be 
necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our 
report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting 
material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. 
However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls 
and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to the 
Uniform Guidance. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged 
with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA 
professional standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance. 

Audit Procedures — Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of the Hospital’s compliance with provisions of applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those 
procedures will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an 
opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the auditee has complied with applicable federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of federal awards applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of 
transactions and other applicable procedures described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types 
of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Hospital’s major 
programs. For federal programs that are included in the Compliance Supplement, our compliance and 
internal control procedures will relate to the compliance requirements that the Compliance Supplement 
identifies as being subject to audit. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion on the 
Hospital’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on 
compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

Other Services 

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and 
related notes of the Hospital in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and the 
Uniform Guidance based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an 
audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. 

11



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Page 5 

We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are 
limited to the financial statement, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes previously 
defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or 
take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.  

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for (1) 
designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, including internal controls over federal awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing 
activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) following laws and regulations; 
(3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are administered in compliance
with compliance requirements and (4) ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and
properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are responsible for
the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and all accompanying information in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for
compliance with applicable laws and regulations (including federal statutes), rules, and the provisions of
contracts and grant agreements (including award agreements.) Your responsibilities also include
identifying significant contractor relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for program
compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information.

Management is responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and 
for the accuracy and completeness of that information, including information from outside of general and 
subsidiary ledgers. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which 
you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as: 
records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and 
transactions, and other matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting 
documentation, and other information as needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance, (3) 
additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (4) unrestricted access to 
persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the 
conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about the financial 
statements and related matters. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and 
confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements 
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect 
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving  
(1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us
of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received in
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws, regulations,
contracts, agreements, and grants. Management is also responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps
to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
that we report.

12



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Page 6 

Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is management’s responsibility to evaluate and 
monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards; 
take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance identified in 
audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings; and prepare a 
summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan. The summary schedule of 
prior audit findings should be available for our review at the beginning of audit fieldwork. 

You are responsible for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying with the 
compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
(including notes and noncash assistance received) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree 
to include our report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains and 
indicates that we have reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to 
include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards that includes our report thereon OR make the audited financial statements readily available to 
intended users of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards no later than the date the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include 
acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, including its form and content, is stated fairly in accordance 
with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those 
used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have 
disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation 
of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been 
engaged to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to 
include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we 
have reported on the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial 
statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon OR 
make the audited financial statements readily available to users of the supplementary information no later 
than the date the supplementary information is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities 
include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for 
presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the 
supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; 
(3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or,
if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary
information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit 
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report 
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related 
to the objectives discussed in the Audit Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility 
includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations 
resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or studies. You are also 
responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format 
for providing that information.

13



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Page 7 

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, related notes, and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be 
required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the 
financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes, and that you have 
reviewed and approved the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related 
notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the 
nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, 
knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility 
for them. 

Preparation of Cost Reports and Consulting 

We will prepare the Hospital’s Medicare cost report and Medicaid cost report for the year ending 
December 31, 2023.  

We remind you that you have the final responsibility for the Medicare and Medicaid cost reports and, 
therefore, you should review them carefully before you sign and file them. We make no representation 
that our services will identify any or all opportunities to maximize reimbursement. 

All of the information included in the cost reports is the representation of management. We direct your 
attention to the fact that management has the responsibility for the proper recording of the transactions in 
the books of account, for the safeguarding of assets, for the substantial accuracy of the cost reports, and 
for identifying and ensuring the Hospital complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its 
activities.  

We will also provide Medicare and other reimbursement consulting services as requested throughout the 
year, including but not limited to review of Medicare rate settings and desk-review and audit adjustments. 
These services will be provided at our standard rates.  

You are also responsible for management decisions and functions; for designating a senior management-
level individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the cost report preparation 
services we provide; and for evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and accepting 
responsibility for them.  

Conformance with Section 952 of Public Law 96-499 

Section 952 of P.L. 96-499 requires access by the Secretary of Health and Human Services and the U.S. 
Comptroller General to the books and records of subcontractors of Medicare providers. Absent the 
allowability of such access, the provider’s cost for such services would not be allowable for Medicare 
reimbursement purposes if the contract value over 12 months is $10,000 or more. We would grant such 
access if this law is applicable to our services. 

HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 

You agree that you are solely responsible for the accuracy, completeness, and reliability of all data and 
information you provide us for our engagement. You agree to provide any requested information on or 
before the date we commence performance of the services. To protect the privacy and provide for the 
security of any protected health information, as such is defined by the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, as amended from time to time, and the regulations and policy guidances 
thereunder (“HIPAA”), we shall enter into a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (“BAA”). 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we 
request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.

14



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Page 8 

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection 
Form that summarizes our audit findings. It is management’s responsibility to electronically submit the 
reporting package (including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary 
schedule of prior audit findings, auditors’ reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data 
Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic submission 
and certification. The Data Collection Form and the reporting package must be submitted within the 
earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the audit 
period. 

We will provide copies of our reports to the Hospital; however, management is responsible for 
distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or 
containing privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for 
public inspection. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Dingus, Zarecor & Associates PLLC and 
constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit 
documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to 
the regulatory agency, cognizant or oversight agency for the audit or its designee, a federal agency 
providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a 
quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will 
notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under 
the supervision of Dingus, Zarecor & Associates PLLC personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may 
provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, 
or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental 
agencies. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the 
report release date or for any additional period requested by a regulatory agency. If we are aware that a 
federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the 
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

We expect to begin our audit in approximately March 2024 and to issue our reports no later than June 
2024. Shaun Johnson is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and 
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. 

Our fee for these services will be as follows: 

 Audit $35,000 

Preparation of Medicare cost report $12,000 

Preparation of Medicaid cost report $5,000 

Uniform Guidance Single Audit (if necessary) $10,000 

State of Alaska Single Audit (if necessary) $10,000 

 State Grant Testing $3,500 

Our fee for the Uniform Guidance Single Audit includes one major program to be audited. Each 
additional major program will increase our fee by $4,500. 

Out-of-pocket travel and shipping costs will be billed at our cost in addition to the above fees. Our 
invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation.  

15



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Page 9 

In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more 
overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services 
for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of 
termination, even if we have not completed our report(s). You will be obligated to compensate us for all 
time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination.  

The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that 
unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is 
necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional 
costs. 

You have requested that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and 
any subsequent reports received during the contract period. Accordingly, our 2022 peer review report 
accompanies this letter. 

Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Hospital’s financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to management and those charged with governance of the Hospital. 
Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the 
results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify 
our opinions, add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our 
auditors’ report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinion is other than unmodified, 
we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or 
are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express an opinion or withdraw from 
this engagement.  

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial 
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by 
Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control over financial reporting and on 
compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is 
solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance, and 
(2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on
internal control over compliance will include a paragraph that states that the purpose of the report on
internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control over
compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Both
reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.

16



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Page 10 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Cordova Community Medical Center and believe this 
letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please 
let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please print and 
sign a copy and return to us.  

DINGUS, ZARECOR & ASSOCIATES PLLC 

Shaun Johnson, CPA 
Owner 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Cordova Community Medical Center. 

Management signature: 

Title:  

Date:  

Governance signature: 

Title:  

Date:  

17



Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control 

To the Members of 
Dingus, Zarecor & Associates PLLC 
and the Peer Review Committee of  
the Colorado Society of CPAs 

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Dingus, Zarecor 
& Associates PLLC (the firm) in effect for the year ended November 30, 2022. Our peer review was 
conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by 
the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards). 

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a system review 
as described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes an 
explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported on in conformity with applicable 
professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating. 

Firm’s Responsibility 

The firm is responsible for designing and complying with a system of quality control to provide the firm 
with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with the requirements of applicable 
professional standards in all material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to 
promptly remediate engagements deemed as not performed or reported on in conformity with the 
requirements of the applicable professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses 
in its system of quality control, if any. 

Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of and compliance with the firm’s system of quality 
control based on our review. 

Required Selections and Considerations 

Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards, 
including a compliance audit under the Single Audit Act; and audits of employee benefit plans. 

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if 
applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures. 

18



Opinion 

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Dingus, Zarecor 
& Associates PLLC in effect for the year ended November 30, 2022, has been suitably designed and 
complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity 
with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with 
deficiency(ies), or fail. Dingus, Zarecor & Associates PLLC has received a peer review rating of pass. 

KraftCPAs PLLC 
May 30, 2023 

19



Memorandum 

To: Hospital Services Board 
From: Administration 
Subject: Approval of Privileges for Murray Buttner, MD 
Date: 12/12/2023 

Suggested Motion: “I move that the Hospital Services Board approve the 
Delineation of Privileges for Murray Buttner, MD, as presented.” 

20



DocuSign Envelope ID: F20ED009-DC22-4617-9C1B-C1EF9E012380

21



DocuSign Envelope ID: F20ED009-DC22-4617-9C1B-C1EF9E012380

22



DocuSign Envelope ID: F20ED009-DC22-4617-9C1B-C1EF9E012380

23



DocuSign Envelope ID: F20ED009-DC22-4617-9C1B-C1EF9E012380

11 December 2023 | 4:06 PM AKST

11 December 2023 | 4:06 PM AKST

24



DocuSign Envelope ID: F20ED009-DC22-4617-9C1B-C1EF9E012380

25



DocuSign Envelope ID: F20ED009-DC22-4617-9C1B-C1EF9E012380

26



DocuSign Envelope ID: F20ED009-DC22-4617-9C1B-C1EF9E012380

11 December 2023 | 4:06 PM AKST

11 December 2023 | 4:06 PM AKST

27



PRACTITIONER CREDENTIALING 

Kelsey Hayden, Chair  

CCMC Authority Board 

ccmcboardseate@cdvcmc.com 

Cordova Community Medical Center 

Cordova, AK 99574 

RE: 

Dear Chairperson and Hospital Authority Board, 

Cordova Community Medical Center has reviewed credentialing application for privileges to our hospital. In accordance 

with our medical staff bylaws, the credentialing committee has reviewed the application including practitioner licenses, 

professional references, and case logs. We recommend                                                for privileges at Cordova Community

Medical Center. 

Sincerely, 

Chief of Staff Date 

Chief Executive Officer Date 

~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 

Murray Buttner, MD

MURRAY BUTTNER, MD

DocuSign Envelope ID: F20ED009-DC22-4617-9C1B-C1EF9E012380

11 December 2023 | 9:53 AM AKST

11 December 2023 | 4:06 PM AKST

28



29



Memorandum 

To: Hospital Services Board 
From: Administration 
Subject: Approval of Privileges for Mary Horner, MD 
Date: 12/12/2023 

Suggested Motion: “I move that the Hospital Services Board approve 
the Delineation of Privileges for Mary Horner, MD, as presented.” 

30



DocuSign Envelope ID: 614AE1C3-528B-46DB-A77A-733F92D7EBB0

31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 614AE1C3-528B-46DB-A77A-733F92D7EBB0

32



DocuSign Envelope ID: 614AE1C3-528B-46DB-A77A-733F92D7EBB0

09 December 2023 | 8:41 AM AKST

11 December 2023 | 1:22 AM AKST

33



34



PRACTITIONER CREDENTIALING 

Kelsey Hayden, Chair  

CCMC Authority Board 

ccmcboardseate@cdvcmc.com 

Cordova Community Medical Center 

Cordova, AK 99574 

RE: 

Dear Chairperson and Hospital Authority Board, 

Cordova Community Medical Center has reviewed credentialing application for privileges to our hospital. In accordance 

with our medical staff bylaws, the credentialing committee has reviewed the application including practitioner licenses, 

professional references, and case logs. We recommend                                                for privileges at Cordova Community 

Medical Center. 

Sincerely, 

Chief of Staff Date 

Chief Executive Officer Date 

~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 614AE1C3-528B-46DB-A77A-733F92D7EBB0

MARY HORNER, MD

MARY HORNER, MD 

JANUARY 25, 2024

09 December 2023 | 8:41 AM AKST

11 December 2023 | 1:22 AM AKST

35



Memorandum 
To: Hospital Services Board
Subject: CCMC 2024 Budget  
Date:  12/08/2023 

Suggested Motion: “I move that the Hospital Services Board approve the CCMC 
2024 Budget as presented.” 

36



RUN DATE 12/14/23
    TIME 15:05

CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER
OPERATING/INCOME STATEMENT
Projected 2023 vs Budgeted  2024

Actual 2022   Annualized 2023  Projected 2024        $ Variance       % Variance

REVENUE
  ACUTE 1,120,178.34     1,536,988.39     1,567,253.80       (30,265.41) (1.94)
  SWING BED 3,450,247.14     3,498,576.21     3,078,747.29       419,828.92 13.63
  LONG TERM CARE 4,693,758.47     5,704,949.28     5,704,949.28 .00 .00
  CLINIC 833,711.25     1,311,477.04     1,337,706.41       (26,229.37) (1.97)
  ANCILLARY DEPTS 2,587,900.31     3,524,125.74     3,594,607.60       (70,481.86) (1.97)
  EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT 2,625,419.95     4,967,993.23     5,067,352.70       (99,359.47) (1.97)
  BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 229,222.37       293,816.07       299,692.38        (5,876.31) (1.97)
  RETAIL PHARMACY 1,380,714.51     1,549,020.10     1,580,000.52       (30,980.42) (1.97)

--------------   --------------   --------------   --------------   --------------
  PATIENT SERVICES TOTAL 16,921,152.34    22,386,946.06    22,230,309.98       156,636.08 .70

DEDUCTIONS
  CHARITY 232,198.22       253,664.52       253,664.52 .00 .00
  CONTRACTUAL ADJUSTMENTS 4,105,238.27     6,248,195.33     5,485,646.69       762,548.64 13.90
  ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 378,787.04        33,817.76       100,000.00       (66,182.24) (66.19)
  BAD DEBT 3,000.00       954,171.64       849,171.64       105,000.00 12.36

--------------   --------------   --------------   --------------   --------------
  DEDUCTIONS TOTAL 4,719,223.53     7,489,849.25     6,688,482.85       801,366.40 11.98

COST RECOVERIES
  GRANTS 745,447.05       402,557.11       529,480.57      (126,923.46) (23.98)
  PPP GRANT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
  IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS 789,903.11       499,951.56       499,951.56 .00 .00
  OTHER REVENUE 200,813.95       152,465.06       152,451.73 13.33 .00

--------------   --------------   --------------   --------------   --------------

  COST RECOVERIES TOTAL 1,736,164.11     1,054,973.73     1,181,883.86      (126,910.13) (10.74)
--------------   --------------   --------------   --------------   --------------

  TOTAL REVENUES 13,938,092.92    15,952,070.54    16,723,710.99      (771,640.45) (4.62)

EXPENSES
  WAGES 5,361,341.51     5,860,715.07     6,582,638.04      (721,922.97) (10.97)
  TAXES & BENEFITS 1,385,381.68     3,394,574.30     3,567,381.03      (172,806.73) (4.85)
  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,111,318.39     2,282,715.34     2,387,062.17      (104,346.83) (4.38)
  SUPPLIES 1,861,509.66     2,043,482.51     2,145,637.15      (102,154.64) (4.77)
  MINOR EQUIPMENT 37,809.67        46,178.48        48,025.07        (1,846.59) (3.85)
  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 208,866.02       173,081.52       180,004.59        (6,923.07) (3.85)
  RENTS & LEASES 138,337.83       145,420.56       151,237.17        (5,816.61) (3.85)
  UTILITIES 533,982.80       600,071.86       623,283.50       (23,211.64) (3.73)
  TRAVEL & TRAINING 98,831.19        75,621.25        78,645.90        (3,024.65) (3.85)
  INSURANCES 222,530.75       223,527.27       253,221.17       (29,693.90) (11.73)
  RECRUIT & RELOCATE 26,613.34 9,289.65 9,661.22 (371.57) (3.85)
  DEPRECIATION 644,462.49       660,843.60       499,408.74       161,434.86 32.32
  OTHER EXPENSES 294,326.08       189,909.20       197,505.24        (7,596.04) (3.85)

--------------   --------------   --------------   --------------   --------------
  TOTAL EXPENSES 12,925,311.41    15,705,430.61    16,723,710.99    (1,018,280.38) (6.09)

--------------   --------------   --------------   --------------   --------------

  OPERATING INCOME 1,012,781.51       246,639.93 .00       246,639.93 .00
  NET INCOME 1,012,781.51       246,639.93 .00       246,639.93 .00

==============   ==============   ==============   ==============   ==============

37



 MEMORANDUM 

To: Hospital Services Board

Subject: CCMC Salary Philosophy  

Date:  12/08/2023 

Suggested Motion: “I move that the Hospital Services Board approve the CCMC 
Salary Philosophy as presented.” 

38



CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER 

STATEMENT OF COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY 

Cordova Community Medical Center (CCMC) maintains an aggressively competitive position in 

the wages which it provides to its employees.  CCMC will establish and maintain a pay program 

which assures employees that pay for their jobs will be market competitive, internally equitable 

and fairly administered. Therefore, we will target pay ranges for all jobs at least at the 50th 

percentile, or the average salary, whichever is higher, of the market from which we compete and 

recruit. We pursue this strategy because we want to attract and retain highly qualified personnel 

who will help us succeed in the increasingly contentious healthcare industry. 

While continuing to be aggressively competitive in the wages it provides, CCMC must also 

carefully position itself for labor costs generally in line with its competitors.  A compensation 

philosophy that is too high compared to the labor needs of CCMC, considering such factors as the 

Consumer Price Index, relevant market surveys and difficulty in recruiting, would adversely affect 

CCMC’s ability to remain financially viable in a time increasingly sensitive to the cost of 

healthcare. 

Helping to ensure a balance between aggressive competitive wages and maintaining a reasonable 

cost structure is the responsibility of the CCMC Chief Executive Officer and Human Resources 

Department.  The Human Resources Department relies on annual published salary surveys from 

the Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association (ASHNHA) to ensure: 

 CCMC salary range midpoints are aggressively competitive with range midpoints of labor

market competition; and

 CCMC has a salary range spread of at least 40% from the minimum to the maximum of the

range.

CCMC salary ranges will allow increases in individual base salaries through a range only to the 

maximum of the range considering the market value of the position.  Payment of the salary increase 

shall be a percentage of base salary up to the maximum of the pay range. Any amount of an increase 

that would place an employee’s base salary above the maximum of the assigned pay range shall 

be paid in the form of a lump sum cash payment. Individuals who have reached the maximum of 

the range in their classification will not receive base salary increases until range expansion occurs 

as the market moves.   

Absent turnover, eventually an employee will reach the top of their range.  In these cases, the 

expression of dissatisfaction of limited earning potential may occur.  CCMC will responsibly and 

prudently manage its financial obligations in salary administration and not create or allow 

unlimited potential in salary.  (Compliant with the Taxpayers Bill of Rights II) 

Should the turnover rate due to salary limitations increase causing threat or loss of key positions, 

Cordova Community Medical Center will respond to the issue of supply and demand still 

maintaining prudent stewardship of fiscal resources. 

39



CCMC annually will analyze labor market conditions and study ASHNHA salary survey 

recommendations to structure competitive salary ranges.  In the event the ASHNHA salary survey 

is not available, the Chief Executive Officer shall select another market relevant salary survey to 

use.  CCMC will respond quickly to labor market condition changes and respond accordingly. 

As a result of this Compensation Philosophy Statement, Cordova Community Medical Center 

expects to: 

 Pay employees extremely well in wages;

 Pay long tenured employees higher than they would likely receive at competitive employers;

 See the wages of long-tenured employees rise as labor rates rise through periodic range

adjustments;

 Maintain salary ranges designed to ensure rates of pay that are internally fair and externally

competitive; and

 Consider extra work on temporary assignments, temporary high census or internal operational

conditions and financially reward employees on a case by case basis, subject to the approval

of the Chief Executive Officer.

Approved by the CCMC Authority Board of Directors July 27, 2017 

40



        January  2024

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
1 - CLOSED- 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10  11  12  13  

14  15  16  17  18  19  20  

21  22  23  24  25 

HOSPITAL   SERVICES 
BOARD QTRLY 

MEETING 

HYBRID IN-PERSON 
12PM  

26  27   ICEWORM
  EVENTS 

28       ICEWORM 
     EVENTS

29         ICEWORM 
 EVENTS

30      ICEWORM 
    EVENTS

31      ICEWORM 
    EVENTS

41


	12-19-2023 Special Meeting Agenda
	HOSPITAL SERVICES BOARD AGENDA
	December 19, 2023 SPECIAL MEETING
	12:00PM HYBRID IN-PERSON & ZOOM

	10-26-2023 Regular Meeting Minutes
	11-27-2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 1
	Memo DZA Engagement letter
	DZA Engagement Letter 2023
	Memo Privileges Muray Buttner MD
	2._Dr_Buttner_Requst_for_Privileges
	14._Dr Buttner Recommendation_to_Board_for_privileges
	15._Dr Buttner Board_Approval
	Memo Privileges Mary Horner  MD
	3._Request_for_Privileges
	14._Board_Approval (003)
	15._Recommendation_to_Board_for_privileges
	Memo CCMC 2024 Budget
	Budget as of 12.14.2023
	Memo CCMC Salary Philosophy
	CCMC Compensation Philosophy 27 Jul 2017
	January-2024-Calendar



